
Northern Inyo Hospital

April 21 2021 Regular Meeting
April 21 2021 Regular Meeting - April 21 2021 Regular Meeting

Agenda, April 21 2021 Regular Meeting

Agenda, April 21 2021 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 2

Bronco Clinic Update

Bronco Clinic Update (1 of 3) ........................................................................................ 5
Bronco Clinic Update (2 of 3) ........................................................................................ 7
Bronco Clinic update, 3 of 3 ........................................................................................ 21

Vendor Credentialing Policy and Procedure

Vendor Credentialing Policy and Procedure approval ............................................. 23

NIHD Board Ad Hoc Committee List

Board of Directors Active Ad Hoc Committee list ..................................................... 28

Chief of Staff Report

Medical Executive Committee Report for April 2021 ................................................ 29
Medical Executive Committee Policy and Procedure approvals, April ................... 30

Consent Agenda

March 10 2021 Special Meeting Minutes .................................................................... 52
March 14 2021 Special Meeting Minutes .................................................................... 53
March 17 2021 Regular Meeting minutes ................................................................... 54
Policy and Procedure annual approvals, Lab ............................................................ 59
Language Services Policy and Procedure approvals ............................................. 131
Cerner Implementation update, April 2021 .............................................................. 139
Financial and Statistical reports as of February 2021 ............................................ 146

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 152

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

AGENDA 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

April 21, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. 
 

              Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to attend this Zoom meeting: 

  

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM:  (A link is also available on the NIHD Website) 

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

Password: 608092 

 

PHONE CONNECTION: 

888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. Public Comment:  The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address 

the Board of Directors.  Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comment unless otherwise modified by the Chair.  Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf.  Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive.  The general Public 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda.  Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered. 

3.  New Business: 

            A. NIHD and Inyo County Covid-19 update (information item). 

B. Moment of appreciation by Board members for District employees and providers (information  

     item).  

C. Bronco Clinic Update (information item).  

            D. Policy and Procedure approval, Vendor Credentialing (action item). 

            E. Review of NIHD Board of Directors Ad Hoc Committee memberships (discussion and possible  

                 action item). 

Page 2 of 152

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09


Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 21 2021 

 

 

4/13/2021, 12:18 PM 

      4.   Chief of Staff Report, Sierra Bourne MD:  

A. Policy and Procedure Approvals (action items): 

1. Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

2. Medical Staff Department Policy – Hospital Medicine 

3. Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn 

4. Standardized Procedure for the Admission of the Well Newborn 

5. Standardized Procedure for COVID-19 Test Results 

B. Medical Staff and APP Staff Appointments (action items): 

1. Cheryl Olson, MD (general surgery) – Courtesy Staff 

C. Requests for Additional Privileges (action items): 

1. Stefan Schunk, MD (internal medicine) – request for outpatient core privileges and 

trigger point injection privileges 

2. Monika Mehrens, DO (family medicine) – request for outpatient core privileges 

D. Medical Staff Resignations (action items): 

1. Rainier Manzanilla, MD (cardiology) – effective 3/1/2021 

2. Diana Havill, MD (psychiatry, Adventist Health) – effective 4/30/2021 

E. New Medical Staff Leadership – Org Chart (information item). 

F. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item). 

           ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                     Consent Agenda (action items) 

5. Approval of minutes of the March 10 2021 special meeting 

6. Approval of minutes of the March 14 2021 special meeting 

7. Approval of minutes of the March 17 2021 regular meeting 

8. Financial and Statistical reports as of February 28 2021 

9. Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

10. Cerner Implementation update 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

11. NIHD Committee updates from Board members (information items).  

 12.  Reports from Board members (information items).   

 13.   Adjournment to Closed Session to/for:   

A. Conference with Legal Counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision  

     (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9).  Name of case: Inyo County LAFCO and NIHD v.  

Page 3 of 152



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 21 2021 

 

 

4/13/2021, 12:18 PM 

     SMHD, Case No. 3-2015-8002247-CY-WM-GDS-Sacramento County.  

B. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Agency Designated Representative:  Irma Moisa;  

     Employee Organization:  AFSCME Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section  

     54957.6).   

C. Significant exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9), 3 cases. 

D. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to Gov. Code Section  

     54956.9(d)(1).  Name of case: Robin Cassidy v. Northern Inyo Healthcare District.  

     14.  Return to Open Session and report of any action taken (information item). 

     15.  Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 

participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 

prior to the meeting. 

Page 4 of 152



School-based health centers (SBHCs) are an innovative way to help ensure that children and youth have 
access to health care and do well in school. They are located on or very near school campuses and offer 
services in a place that is familiar, trusted, age-appropriate, and convenient for students and families. SBHCs 
are supported by many different communities because they respond to local needs. In 2000, there were 108 
SBHCs; today, there are 293 and growing!

School-Based Health Centers 
in California: A Growing Trend

1203 Preservation Park Way, Suite 302, Oakland, CA 94612 | 510-268-1260 | info@schoolhealthcenters.org 
schoolhealthcenters.org | Updated September 2020

Dental Treatment

Youth Engagement

Reproductive Health

Dental Prevention

Mental Health

Medical 86%

68%

49%

65%

36%

60%

Services Provided by SBHCs

• Reimbursement through Medi-Cal, health 
plans, Family PACT, Child Health and Disability 
Prevention Program (CHDP), and contracts for 
mental health services

• School district contributions and in-kind 
support of space, nurses, utilities, and custodial 
services

• Sponsoring agency contributions or subsidies
• Government and private grants

students have
access to SBHCs

& high-quality
health services

of SBHCs serve 
students only

of SBHCs serve 
broader 
community

17%
83%

Multiple grade levels served

Middle School

Elementary School

Mobile/School-linked

High School

School Levels Served

Middle
School

10%

High School
39%

Mobile/
School-linked

25%

Elementary
School

21%

Multiple grade
levels served 5%

Other
(eg. Hospital,
Health Dept.)

22%

School
Districts

27%

Federally
Quali�ed

Health Centers
52%

Who Operates SBHCs

286,000

How SBHCs
Are Financed

Page 5 of 152



Del
Norte

Shasta

Humboldt

AlamedaSan Francisco

Sonoma

Lake

Sacramento

Solano
Marin

Napa

Yolo

San 
JoaquinContra 

Costa

Stanislaus

San Mateo Santa 
Clara

Santa Cruz

Merced

Monterey

Fresno

Orange

Tulare

San Luis 
Obispo Kern

Santa 
Barbara

Ventura
Los 

Angeles

San Bernardino

Kings

San Diego

Mariposa

Riverside

Madera

Inyo

293
SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH
CENTERS AND GROWING
Alameda=30
Contra Costa=22 
Del Norte=1
Fresno=13

Humboldt=3 
Inyo=1
Kern=3
Lake=1
Los Angeles=75
Madera=2
Marin=2
Merced=1
Monterey=2
Napa=4
Orange=9

Riverside=7
Sacramento=3
San Bernardino=8
San Diego=16
San Francisco=20
San Joaquin=6
San Luis Obispo=2
San Mateo=2
Santa Barbara=1
Santa Clara=15
Santa Cruz=7
Shasta=1
Solano=3
Sonoma=4
Stanislaus=4
Tulare=6
Ventura=2
Yolo=1

11-19

1-4

5-10

SBHCs per county

1203 Preservation Park Way, Suite 302, Oakland, CA 94612 | 510-268-1260 | info@schoolhealthcenters.org 
schoolhealthcenters.org | Updated September 2020

20-75

Page 6 of 152



The Bronco Clinic 

A School-Based Health Center at Bishop Union High

Colleen McEvoy RN, MSN, C-PNP

Page 7 of 152



What is a School-Based Health Center (SBHC)?

• A clinic in a school!

• What services do they offer? It varies-

• Medical 86% Reproductive Health 60%

• Mental Health 68% Youth Engagement 49%

• Dental 65%

Page 8 of 152



School-based health centers (SBHCs) are an innovative way to help ensure that children and youth have 

access to health care and do well in school. They are located on or very near school campuses and of er 

services in a place that is familiar, trusted, age-appropriate, and convenient for students and families. SBHCs 

are supported by many dif erent communities because they respond to local needs. In 2000, there were 108 

SBHCs; today, there are 293 and growing!

School-Based Health Centers 

in California: A Growing Trend

1203 Preservation Park Way, Suite 302, Oakland, CA 94612 | 510-268-1260 | info@schoolhealthcenters.org 

schoolhealthcenters.org | Updated September 2020

Dental Treatment

Youth Engagement

Reproductive Health

Dental Prevention

Mental Health

Medical 86%

68%

49%

65%

36%

60%

Services Provided by SBHCs

• Reimbursement through Medi-Cal, health 

plans, Family PACT, Child Health and Disability 

Prevention Program (CHDP), and contracts for 

mental health services

• School district contributions and in-kind 

support of space, nurses, utilities, and custodial 

services

• Sponsoring agency contributions or subsidies

• Government and private grants

students have
access to SBHCs

& high-quality
health services

of SBHCs serve 

students only

of SBHCs serve 

broader 

community

17%

83%

Multiple grade levels served

Middle School

Elementary School

Mobile/School-linked

High School

School Levels Served

Middle
School
10%

High School
39%

Mobile/
School-linked

25%

Elementary
School
21%

Multiple grade
levels served 5%

Other
(eg. Hospital,
Health Dept .)

22%

School
Districts

27%

Federally
Quali ed

Health Centers
52%

Who Operates SBHCs

286,000

How SBHCs
Are Financed

Page 9 of 152



Page 10 of 152



Page 11 of 152



Page 12 of 152



Benefits of  SBHC’s

• Provides services to students where they are

• Decrease in student absences

• Increases access to healthcare

• Promotes responsibility in youth for their own health

• Helps busy parents stay at work

Page 13 of 152



Bronco Clinic 

Started 01/2018 

Page 14 of 152



Services 

Provided

• Diagnosis and treatment of  minor illness, 
injury and medical conditions

• STD screening and treatment

• Reproductive health related services (full 
range of  birth control, condoms, pregnancy 
tests)

• Health education for students and families

• Coordinate care, including appropriate follow-
up and referrals to health and social services 
on and off

• In class education on birth control, family 
planning and other health topics

• No charge for services to start

Page 15 of 152



Student 
Response

• Slow at first but then 

steadily increasing. 

• 1/2018- 6/2018. 

• There one day/week-

110 visits

Page 16 of 152



2018-2019

• Dr. Brown seeing patients at BUHS

• Open Tuesday and Thursday

• Did not tabulate full year

• By 3/31/21 had 285 visits

Page 17 of 152



Bronco Visits 8/2018-3/2019

Reproductive Health Mental Health Sick/pain/injury/acne/BP/other

Page 18 of 152



Plans

• Becoming Medi-Cal and Family Pact 

Providers

• Billing Insurance

• Consider Providing Sports Physicals?

• Improve Access to Mental Health?

• Clinic Remodel in Process

Page 19 of 152



Sustainability

• Becoming Medi-Cal/ FPACT Providers

• Bill Insurance

• Research Grants

• Partner with Bishop School District?

• Get other Local Agencies Involved? 

Page 20 of 152



What services will be provided at the Bronco 
Health Clinic (BHC)?

The BHC will provide: 
              Acute visits for minor illness and injuries

  Initial treatment for acute asthma attacks
  Acne treatment
  Treatment for depression, anxiety and   

       substance abuse
  Reproductive health services including   

    birth control, STD testing and treatment
  Over-the-counter medication for pain and  

   allergies 
  Referrals to Community Agencies

              Health Education

Can the Bronco Health Clinic do physicals and 
give immunizations? 

Not at this time. We may be able to in the future.  In 
order to do a comprehensive physical exam, we 
need to have supplies to test vision and hearing, 
appropriate size blood pressure cu�s, and immuni-
zations available. We do not have the space or 
resources at the BHC to allow us to do that now. We 
can assist students in making an appointment with 
their primary care provider for annual physicals 
and completion of sports physical forms.

How much will it cost for my child to receive 
services at the health center?

At this time, we are not billing for services. This will 
likely change in the future. We will notify you if we 
do start billing insurance. Our goal is to provide full 
access to services regardless of insurance. 

Do I need to be there for my child’s visit?

No. We can get your verbal or written consent to 
see the student without you present. When a 

student visits the center without a parent, the 
health center sta� will ordinarily attempt to inform 
the parent/guardian and explain the reason for the 
visit and which services were provided. 

For most services we need parental consent. By law 
minors can consent to certain services without their 
parents’ approval, including treatment for sexually 
transmitted infections, HIV testing, and birth 
control.

Will the Bronco Health Clinic eliminate the need 
for the school nurses & school counselors?

No. The clinic does not replace school nurses or 
counselors. Rather, they complement services 
already being provided by placing additional 
resources in the schools. 

School nurses and counselors are vitally important 
to comprehensive health care for students and we 
appreciate all that they do for students.

Who will sta� the Bronco 
Health Clinic?

The providers at the clinic 
are Colleen McEvoy,
a Certi�ed Pediatric Nurse 
Practitioner (C-PNP), and 
Stacey Brown, MD. Colleen 
specialized in adolescent 
medicine in her studies at 
the University of California, 
San Francisco.

Will the Bronco Health Clinic eliminate the need 
for the school nurses & school counselors?

No. The clinic does not replace school nurses or 
counselors. Rather, they complement services 
already being provided by placing additional 
resources in the schools. School nurses and 
counselors are vitally important to comprehensive 
health care for students.

Colleen McEvoy, C-PNP

Page 21 of 152



Bronco Health 
Clinic

ATENCIÓN: si habla español/castellano, tiene a su 
disposición servicios gratuitos de asistencia 
lingüística.  Llame al 760-873-5811 (TTY: 711).

注意：如果您使用繁體中文，您可以免費獲得語
言援助服務。請致電 760-873-5811（TTY：711）

Bronco Health Clinic
Bishop Union High School District

301 N. Fowler Street, Bishop CA 93514
Main O�ce: (760) 873-4275

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Northern Inyo Healthcare District and Bishop 
Union High School have launched a school-
based health center.  The Bronco Health Clinic 
is now open and serves students enrolled at 
Bishop Union High School. Our goal is to 
improve student health and academic perfor-
mance. 

What is a School-Based Health Center (SBHC)?             
A school-based health center brings a health-
care provider into a school, so students can 
avoid health-related absences and receive the 
support they need to succeed in the classroom. 
California currently has almost 250 SBHCs and 
that number is growing. 

Research shows that SBHCs have a positive 
impact on absences, dropout rates, disciplinary 
problems, and other academic outcomes. 

Bene�ts of SBHCs

 Decrease in student absences
 Increase access to healthcare for   

       youth
 Promote responsibility in youth for   

       their health
 Help busy parents stay at work

Operated by Bishop Union High School and 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

A Community Partnership Working to Improve 
Academic Success & Health of All Students   

Page 22 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Vendor Credentialing 

Scope: Purchasing Department: Compliance, Purchasing 

Source: Director of Purchasing  Effective Date: 

 

 1 

Policy: 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District credentials all vendors and representatives from outside businesses or 

organizations according to state and federal guidelines, and Joint Commission recommendations. 

Credentialing requirements promote patient health, safety, confidentiality, and conformance with regulatory 

guidelines for the District. 
 

Definition(s) 

Healthcare Industry Representatives (HCIR) are defined as individuals seeking access to a healthcare 

organization (HCO) and who are employed by a third party or are independent contractors. These individuals 

may or may not be seeking access to patient care and/or procedural areas within the organization. Examples 

of HCIR’s include, however are not limited to, clinical education specialist, supplier executive, construction 

worker, homecare provider, social services, delivery personnel, durable medical equipment staff, supplier 

sales representative, non-employee maintenance, biomedical technician, union representative, and contract 

labor. 

 

Contracted Labor, Clinical and Collaborative Partners – described as contract employees/vendors that 

may provide direct patient care and/or services on behalf of an organization; typically, a contractual 

relationship exists between the HCO and the vendor/service provider. All non-clinical contract labor also 

falls within this category. Examples – patient care personnel can include, but are not limited to, nursing, 

therapy, pharmacy, dietary, activities staff, drug/alcohol counselors, patient care technicians 

Requirements; credentialing for these individuals, as with all contracted vendors, should be addressed 

in Human Resources processes. Credentialing of these individuals is not within the scope of this 

document and the proposed recommendations outlined herein.  

 

Patient Care Areas —  Patient care areas include, but are not limited to, the following: patient rooms, 

operating rooms, nurses stations, places where patients receive treatment, such as radiology and therapy 

areas, and corridors in patient treatment areas (e.g., including corridors near an operating room but not 

including corridors near a cafeteria). 

 

Referrals or Care Continuum HCIRs – individuals who primarily serve in a clinical support role and most 

often receive patients or provide equipment for patient use in the next site of care. Their role requires them to 

work in patient care areas and/or provide assistance to or consult with patient care staff. Examples may 

include, but are not limited to, assisted living, hospice, rehabilitation facilities’ staff, home care 

representatives, long-term care staff, etc. 

 Requirements; required to meet specific requirements within their organizations equivalent to 

credentialing requirements. At a minimum these HCIRs would be required to wear a name tag 

identifying their company and personal name. Proof of credentialing and immunizations should be 

made available to the HCO upon request of the HCIRs’ employer within 24 hours. 

 

Level I – HCIR Guests – individuals who may seek access to an HCO’s facility, however do not have 

access to clinical areas, do not provide technical assistance, do not operate equipment, do not enter patient 

care areas and do not provide assistance or consult with patient care staff or clinicians. These may include 

company representatives that visit less than three times per year, are accompanied by a credentialed HCIR 

and are not entering patient care areas. May include, but are not limited to, delivery vendors, construction 

labor, non-clinical contract vendor, and vendor’s management or non-clinical implementation specialists. If 

Page 23 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Vendor Credentialing 

Scope: Purchasing Department: Compliance, Purchasing 

Source: Director of Purchasing  Effective Date: 

 

 2 

guest is a frequent visitor to the HCO and is not a union business representative, contracted or referral HCIR 

he or she should be elevated to a Level II. Level I HCIR should be accompanied in the facility, except that a 

union representative shall not be accompanied in the facility.   

 

 

Level II – Tech Support and Sales HCIR –Primarily serve in a technical support role or product and 

service sales role. They may provide technical assistance, assist with operation of equipment, and be in 

patient care environment that is not defined as restricted or sterile procedure area. Their role requires them to 

often work in patient care areas where other visitors may be present and/or provide assistance to or consult 

with patient care staff. This also includes vendor and supplier sales representatives that interact with care 

providers for the purpose of sales, education, and technical support. Examples may include, but are not 

limited to, durable medical equipment providers, medical device sales and pharmacy representatives, 

representatives calling on departments such as laboratory and radiology, as well as diagnostic 

representatives. 

 

Level III – Clinical Support and Sales HCIR – Individuals who serve primarily in a clinical support or 

product sales/service role while attending or observing patient procedures (including sterile or restricted 

areas). Often provide technical information and serve as a resource for the medical professional, by 

responding to questions regarding the appropriate operation of the medical equipment. These 

representatives may not scrub in on a procedure, touch patients, or operate, control or touch any 

equipment being used on a patient, except at the request of the attending physician, and for the sole 

purpose of ensuring patient safety. They may troubleshoot and offer technical assistance; calibrate or 

program equipment; and provide other technical support needed to ensure that the respective 

equipment functions safely. 

 

Requirements: 

The following chart outlines the credentialing requirements managed within the supplier representative 

registration system (excluded activities managed with HCO’s security and HR systems): 

 

Administrative Credentials 
Levels 

III II I 

HCO Name Tag; name tag produced by an automated vendor 

credentialing system or the HCO or equivalent as determined 

by HCO 

X X X 

Employment Verification: memo or letter on the supplier’s 

letterhead will serve as acceptable documentation 
X X  

Proof of Liability Insurance: A general Acord Certificate of 

Liability Insurance or letter of attestation on HCIR’s 

company’s letterhead as evidence that the company maintains 

insurance necessary to protect itself, its employees, directors 

and officers from liability in acceptable forms and limits.  This 

document should not specify a certificate holder (e.g., 

healthcare system or customer name).  Specifically, the vendor 

will maintain commercial general liability in minimum 

X X  

Page 24 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Vendor Credentialing 

Scope: Purchasing Department: Compliance, Purchasing 

Source: Director of Purchasing  Effective Date: 

 

 3 

amounts of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 

and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) in the annual 

aggregate.  The vendor will notify the customer within ten (10) 

days of any substantial reduction, cancellation or termination 

of any insurance coverage.  The vendor will provide evidence 

of insurance coverage 

    

    

    

Administrative Credentials (cont) 
Levels 

III II I 

Proof of Criminal Background Check X X  

Code of Ethics and Professional Conduct Policy X X  

Corporate Policy Manual X X  

Employee Awareness and Understanding of False Claims X X  

Vendor Privacy Form -  X X  

Sanctions Checklist: Including OFAC (terrorism), GSA 

(failed contracts) , OIG ( Medicare/aid), DEA ( drug 

enforcement), FDA (food/drug), TRICARE, PHS (public 

health) Federal Register, State 

X X X 

 

Training Credentials 
Levels 

III II I 

Vendor Orientation Manual X X  

Operating Room Protocols (Sterile/Aseptic Controls) X   

HIPAA Training X X  

Product Training/Competency & Medical Device 

Reporting (MDR) Requirements Training (as applicable) 

per FDA guidelines 

X X  

Ethics/Conduct Policy and Procedure X X  

HCO Specific Policies:  organization specific policies that are 

relevant to all HCIR’s may be placed in the credentialing 

system for the HCIRs to indicate they have read the documents 

(policy content required to be known by the HCIR may be 

placed in the Vendor Orientation manual) 

X X  

Hand Hygiene  X X X 

Infection Control Reference Guide X X  

Bloodborne Pathogens X X  

 

Immunization Credentials 
Levels 

III II I 

Tuberculosis Testing per CDC Guidelines X X  

Influenza Immunization following NIHD Policy and Procedure X X X 

MMR X X  

Page 25 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Vendor Credentialing 

Scope: Purchasing Department: Compliance, Purchasing 

Source: Director of Purchasing  Effective Date: 

 

 4 

Hepatitis B X X  

 

Enforcement: 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District, the HCIR, and their employer have a responsibility to enforce 

requirements and practices that are in the best interest of the patients and the organization.  Clear and 

effective communication and corrective escalation processes should be articulated within the HCO and with 

the HCIR’s employer to facilitate rapid resolution of any violations or issues that may need to be addressed 

by any of the parties.  Infractions will be classified as follows (dependent on severity NIHD reserves the 

right to move directly to actions outlined in Type 3 Infraction): 

1. Type 1 Infraction – non-compliance with requirement or violation of a requirement; action will be 

direct communication with the HCIR and written communication to his or her manager. 

2. Type 2 Infraction – non-compliance or violation has not been resolved, and additional violation has 

occurred; or patient safety and/or confidentiality have been compromised; action will be written 

notification to the HCIR and his or her manager, as well as potential suspension dependent on the 

nature of the seriousness of the violation or non-compliance. 

3. Type 3 Infraction - Situation has not been rectified, there has been a repeated violation subsequent 

to a second notice, or business operations, patient safety, and/or confidentiality have been severely 

compromised/impacted; action will be written notice to the HCIR, his or her manager and the 

employer that the HCIR is suspended from access to the facility until appropriate resolution of the 

infraction(s) or the HCIR’s employer and the HCO can come to a resolution of the situation.  

Departments will be notified if a respective HCIR is no longer permitted in the facility. 

 

In all instances, the HCIR employer should take responsibility for assuring continuity and quality of 

service and patient care safety in the event an HCIR is unable to perform their duties. 

 

References: 

1. Joint Commission standards 

a. EC.02.01.01 

b. RI.01.01.01 

c. IC.02.01.01 

d. LC.02.02.05, EPs 1, 3, 4 

 

  

Committee Approval Date 

NCOC 2/22/2021 

Infection Control Committee 6/3/19 

Compliance and Business Ethics Committee 4/29/19 

Executive Team 6/17/19 

Medical Executive Committee 6/10/19 

Board of Directors 6/19/19 

Last Board of Directors Review 6/19/19 

 

Responsibility for review and maintenance: Director, Materials Management 

Index Listings: 

Page 26 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Vendor Credentialing 

Scope: Purchasing Department: Compliance, Purchasing 

Source: Director of Purchasing  Effective Date: 

 

 5 

Developed: 04/2018nl 

Revised: 2/2019pd 

Reviewed:  

 

 

 

 

Page 27 of 152



 
 

NIHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS AD HOC COMMITTEES 
 

Active Committees and Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Medical Staff / Board Relations Committee 
- Sharp, Turner 

 
Physician Compensation Subcommittee 

- Sharp, Veenker 
 

NIHD / SMHD Joint Relations Committee 
- Sharp, Veenker 

 
NIHD Medical Staff Wellness Survey Ad Hoc Committee 

- Sharp, Veenker 
 
 

Page 28 of 152



 

 

TO:  NIHD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Sierra Bourne, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 

DATE:  April 6, 2021 

RE:  Medical Executive Committee Report 

 

The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the Committee 

agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors: 

 

A. Policies and Procedures (action items) 

1. Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

2. Medical Staff Department Policy – Hospital Medicine 

3. Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn 

4. Standardized Procedure for the Admission of the Well Newborn 

5. Standardized Procedure for COVID-19 Test Results 

 

B. Medical Staff and APP Staff Appointments (action item) 

1. Cheryl Olson, MD (general surgery) – Courtesy Staff 

 

C. Requests for Additional Privileges (action items) 

1. Stefan Schunk, MD (internal medicine) – request for outpatient core privileges and trigger point 

injection privileges.  

2. Monika Mehrens, DO (family med) – request for outpatient core privileges. 

 

D. Medical Staff Resignations (action items) 

1. Rainier Manzanilla, MD (cardiology) – effective 3/1/2021  

2. Diana Havill, MD (psychiatry, Adventist Health) – effective 4/30/2021  

 

E. New Medical Staff Leadership – Org Chart (information item)  

 

F. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item) 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California  93514 

          Medical Staff Office 

    (760) 873-2136     voice 

     (760) 873-2130     fax 

      

Page 29 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 1 of 9 
 

PURPOSE:  

To provide qualitative and quantitative information regarding cardiac structure and function. 

 

POLICY: 

Physician order and indications required for all exams performed. 

 

MATERIALS: 

Duplex Scanner 

Appropriate frequency transducer 

Scanning gel 

EKG Electrodes 

Patient’s Chart if inpatient or physician order form if outpatient 

 

PROCEDURE: 

1. Introduce yourself, and verify patient identity according to hospital procedure. 

2. Explain the procedure to the patient and answer patient questions. 

3. Verify the physician order and indication prior to starting examination. 

4. Allow for patient privacy for all patients, (Inpatients – Close curtains, keep patients covered 

appropriately with hospital gown, and towel(s). Outpatients – Close exam room doors, 

instruct the patient to change into a hospital gown, step out to allow the patient privacy 

while changing, keep the patient covered appropriately with the hospital gown, and towel(s).   

5. Every exam should have an EKG with a readily definable P wave and QRS. 

6. Record patient’s height and weight and BP in order that indices will be automatically 

calculated. 

7. All images/waveforms should be recorded at an appropriate depth to avoid cutting off 

anatomical/hemodynamic information but insuring the images/waveforms are not too small 

to interpret accurately. 

8. All measurements should be recorded. 

9. All spectral waveform displays should be recorded at 100 mm/sec and frozen for 

measurements.  Other sweep speeds may be used to demonstrate flow information but 

should not be used for measuring. 

10. The sonographer shall meticulously evaluate any flow abnormality or area of questionable 

function, or anatomy. 

11. Appropriate depth, frequency, frame rate, color scales, and focal zone adjustments should be 

continually made to optimize image quality.  All the following captures shall have an 

optimum EKG recording. 

12. One or more cardiac cycles will be captured as needed to adequately demonstrate anatomic 

and hemodynamic information. 

13. Spectral Doppler, in the presence of atrial fibrillation, 5 individual cardiac cycles will be 

captured and averaged.  

 

 

 

Page 30 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Minimal Basic Imaging Views for Routine Studies 

 

Parasternal Long Axis View 

Right Ventricular Inflow Tract View 

Parasternal Short Axis View 

Apical Four-Chamber View 

Apical Five-Chamber View 

Apical Two-Chamber View 

Apical Long Axis View 

Subcostal Four-chamber view 

Subcostal Short Axis 

Inferior Vena Cava View(IVC) View 

Abdominal Aorta View 

 

Reference:  American College of Cardiology/American Heart Association Guidelines for the        

Clinical Application of Echocardiography. 

 

 

 

 

PARASTERNAL TRANSDUCER POSITION 

Parasternal Long Axis View 

1. 2D - Tilt transducer to obtain largest left ventricular end-diastolic dimension.  Place 

transducer so that interventricular septum (IVS) and anterior aortic wall are at the same level 

(mitral valve will usually be in center of sector). 

2. Use increased depth to R/O effusions, and then decrease depth.  

3. Assess all anatomy for size, structure, and function. 

4. Zoom and measure the left ventricular outflow tract (LVOT) diameter in systole.  

5. Measure the aortic root and ascending aorta using 2D imaging if enlarged.  

6. If any valve is poorly visualized or pathology is present, zoom the 2D image.  

7. If any question of prolapse, have patient perform a Valsalva maneuver using 2D imaging. 

8. M-mode - (sweep speed = 50 cm/sec).  M-mode cursor should be perpendicular to all 

structures measured. 

9. Assess all anatomy for size, structure, and function. 

10. Measure the aortic root at end-diastole. 

11. Measure the left atrium at end-systole (at the greatest anterior-posterior dimension). 

12. Record the mitral valve (do not measure). 

13. Measure the anterior septum, left ventricular internal diameter, and posterior wall at end-

diastole. 

14. Measure the left ventricular internal diameter at end-systole.  

15. If unable to obtain the above measurements by M-mode, attempt the measurements using 

2D imaging.  

16. If any question of prolapse, have patient perform a Valsalva maneuver using M-Mode.                            

Page 31 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 3 of 9 
 

17. Color Doppler – Interrogate each individually: The LVOT and aortic valve, mitral valve, 

and inter-ventricular septum – Angle the transducer as necessary to best show the 

regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet(s), sub-aortic obstruction, or ventricular septal defect(s).  

 

Right Ventricular Inflow Tract View 
1. 2D -Assess all anatomy for size, structure and function. 

2. Tricuspid leaflets to evaluate structure and function 

3. Color Doppler – Interrogate the tricuspid valve, angle the transducer as necessary to best 

show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

4. Spectral Doppler - Use continuous wave Doppler to measure the tricuspid regurgitant jet if 

present and obtain the right atrial/right ventricular (RA/RV) gradient, for calculation of the 

pulmonary artery pressure.  

  

Parasternal Short Axis View 
1. 2D - Basal level 

2. Assess the aortic valve and all other anatomy for size, structure and function.  

3. If question of pathology, use the zoom feature. 

4. If necessary angle superiorly to evaluate the proximal aortic root for endocarditis, aortic 

dissection, prosthetic valve abnormalities/problems etc. 

5. Color Doppler – Interrogate the aortic valve (AOV) including the left atrium, angle the 

transducer as necessary to best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

6. If necessary angle superiorly to evaluate the proximal aortic root for endocarditis, aortic 

dissection, prosthetic valve abnormalities/problems, etc. 

7. 2D – Assess the tricuspid valve and all other anatomy for size, structure and function. 

8. If question of pathology use the zoom feature. 

9. Color Doppler - Interrogate the tricuspid valve (TV), angle the transducer as necessary to 

best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

10. Spectral Doppler - Use continuous wave Doppler to evaluate the tricuspid regurgitant jet if 

present and obtain the RA/RV gradient, for calculation of the pulmonary artery pressure.  

11. 2D – Assess the pulmonic valve and all other anatomy for size, structure and function. 

12. If question of pathology use the zoom feature. 

13. Color Doppler - Interrogate the pulmonary valve (PV), angle the transducer as necessary to 

best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

14. Spectral Doppler – Measure using pulsed wave Doppler measure right ventricular outflow 

tract (RVOT) peak velocity. 

15. Using continuous wave Doppler measure Peak velocity. 

16. Use continuous wave Doppler to evaluate the pulmonic regurgitant jet if present and 

measure to determine the pulmonary artery end-diastolic pressure.  

17. 2D – Mitral valve (MV) level - Assess the mitral valve and all other anatomy for size, 

structure, and function.  

18. If question of pathology use the zoom feature. 

19. If stenosis is present, planimeter the valve. 

Page 32 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 4 of 9 
 

20. Color Doppler - Can be used if pathology present. 

21. 2D – Left ventricle (LV) / papillary muscle level - Assess the LV and papillary muscles and 

all other anatomy for size, structure, and function. 

22. 2D – LV apical level - Assess the LV and all other anatomy for size, structure, and function.  

 

 

APICAL TRANSDUCER POSITION 

Apical 4 Chamber 

1. 2D - Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other anatomy for size, structure, and 

function; take care not to foreshorten the image. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature.  

3. If thrombus is suspected, maximize frame rate, optimize your image, and if indicated, 

Definity can be used to help R/O thrombus, (See policy on Ultrasound Contrast Agents – 

Definity). 

4. If the ejection fraction(EF) is < 50% measure and calculate the LV EF using the 

Simpson’s Bi-Plane Method.  

5. Measure left atrial volume using the Bi-Plane Method; set focus at LA(Left Atrium) and 

maximize frame rate; using the calc. package, planimeter the 4 chamber end-diastolic LA 

volume. 

6. Color Doppler – Interrogate all cardiac chambers and valves. Angle the transducer as 

necessary to best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

7. Color M-mode - Mitral valve – If Ejection Fraction is < 50% or diastolic dysfunction, 

measure the left ventricular flow propagation velocity; sector should only show the LV and 

MV; move the color baseline up to approximately 30 - 40; color gain should be set to just 

below saturation; turn the M-mode on and place line through the left ventricular inflow, take 

care to be as parallel to flow as possible; set distal sample marker at the level of annulus, set 

the proximal sample shallow enough to include the entire left ventricular inflow tract 

(LVIT) pattern; press freeze when you have a good tracing; change the color map to 

“Red/Blue split variance” color map; select LV Flow Propagation from the calc. package 

and measure from the initial MV opening along the blue slop for a total of 4 cm.  

8. Spectral Doppler - If mitral insufficiency is present, measure the proximal isovelocity 

hemispheric surface area (PISA) (for Right Ventricle (RV) and Effective Regurgitant 

Orifice Area ( ERO); Zoom the mitral valve (MV); set the color Doppler regurgitant aliasing 

velocity to 30-40 cm/sec.; from the calc. package select PISA; measure diameter/radius of 

Page 33 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 5 of 9 
 

hemisphere; then with CW Doppler, Doppler the mitral regurgitation (MR) and trace the 

envelope for the max velocity and VTI. 

9. Pulsed wave (PW) Doppler at the tips of the mitral leaflets and measure E velocity, and A 

velocity for the E/A ratio, and the deceleration time. 

10. Pulsed wave Doppler at level of the annulus and measure the A duration. 

11. If mitral stenosis is present, use continuous wave (CW) then measure the mean pressure 

gradient, and the pressure half time. 

12. For cardiac tamponade, pericardial constriction, or restrictive cardiomyopathy, turn on 

Respirometer and image for 15 seconds at sweep speed of 25 mm/sec 

13. Tissue Doppler - Doppler Tissue Imaging of the mitral annulus; Adjust sample volume size 

to 5 mm; Place sample volume on the septal mitral annulus or (Lateral if necessary); Adjust 

Doppler scale 10 – 30 cm/s depending on the maximum velocity; Optimize Doppler filter 

until clear waveforms are achieved; Measure the annulus S wave, E wave, and A wave 

velocities. 

14. Pulmonary Vein Interrogation – Use color Doppler with appropriate color scale to 

identify pulmonary vein flow; place Doppler sample volume (SV) 1-3 cm                                 

into  right upper pulmonary vein (RUPV); SV size 2-4 mm; sweep speed 100 mm/sec; 2 

cardiac cycles. Measure S wave, D wave.  

 

Apical 5 Chamber 

1. 2D - Image the aortic valve and LVOT. Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other 

anatomy for size, structure, and function. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature. 

3. Color Doppler – Interrogate the LVOT and aortic valve, angle the transducer as necessary 

to best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

4. Spectral Doppler – PW Doppler of LVOT (place sample volume .5-1cm below valve) and 

trace the envelope. 

5. If aortic insufficiency is present and Doppler angle is good, perform CW Doppler of the 

regurgitant jet and measure the pressure half time. 

6. If  asymmetric septal hypertrophy (ASH) or a subaortic obstruction is suspected, use PW 

Doppler in LVOT to rule out subaortic obstruction. If present zoom LVOT and evaluate by 

sampling from the LV slowly into the LVOT, looking for a sudden increase of the subaortic 

velocities and trace the envelope. 

7. CW the aortic valve to evaluate for aortic stenosis. Obtain the highest velocity and trace the 

envelope. 

 

Apical Four Chamber View (continued) 

1. 2D – Right heart Interrogation. Optimize imaging to assess all anatomy for size, structure, 

and function. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature. 

3. Measure the right atrium at its widest at end-systole. 

4. Measure the right ventricle at its widest at end-diastole. 

Page 34 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 6 of 9 
 

5. Two dimensional zoom of tricuspid valve if abnormal appearing or poorly visualized in four 

chamber image. 

6. Color Doppler – Interrogate the tricuspid valve, angle the transducer as necessary to best 

show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

7. Spectral Doppler – PW Doppler – right ventricular inflow tract at tips of TV; SV size 1-2 

mm; adjust apical 4-chamber so that RV inflow is parallel to Doppler cursor. Measure the E 

velocity. 

8. If tricuspid regurgitation is present, use continuous wave Doppler to measure the tricuspid 

regurgitant jet and obtain the RA/RV gradient, for calculation of the pulmonary artery 

pressure.  

9. For Cardiac Tamponade or Constriction, turn on Respirometer and image for 15 seconds at 

sweep speed 25 mm/sec. 

 

Apical Two-Chamber View 

1. 2D – Evaluate the left heart and MV, and other anatomy for size, structure, and function; 

take care not to foreshorten the image. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature. 

3. Complete the Simpson’s Bi-Plane LV ejection fraction.  

4. Complete the Bi-Plane LA volume measurement, set focus at LA and maximize frame 

rate; using the calc. package, planimeter the 2 chamber end-diastolic  left atrial (LA) 

volume.                                                     

5. Color Doppler – Interrogate the mitral valve, angle the transducer as necessary to best 

show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

6. Spectral Doppler - If mitral insufficiency is present, measure the PISA (for R.V. and 

E.R.O.); Zoom the MV; set the color Doppler regurgitant aliasing velocity to 30-40 cm/sec.; 

from the calc. package select PISA; measure diameter/radius of hemisphere; then with CW 

Doppler, Doppler the MR and trace the envelope for the max velocity and velocity time 

integral (VTI).  

7. If mitral stenosis is present, use CW then measure the mean pressure gradient, and the 

pressure half time.  

 

Apical Long Axis View 
1. 2D – Evaluate the left heart chambers and the MV, LVOT, AOV and other anatomy for 

size, structure, and function; take care not to foreshorten the image. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature. 

3. Color Doppler – Interrogate the MV, LVOT, and AOV, angle the transducer as necessary 

to best show the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

4. Spectral Doppler - If aortic insufficiency is present and Doppler angle is good, perform 

CW Doppler of the regurgitant jet and measure the pressure half time. 

5. PW Doppler of LVOT (place sample volume .5-1cm below valve) and trace the envelope. 

6. If ASH or a subaortic obstruction is suspected, use PW Doppler in LVOT to rule out 

subaortic obstruction. If present zoom LVOT and evaluate by sampling from the LV slowly 

Page 35 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 7 of 9 
 

into the LVOT, looking for a sudden increase of the subaortic velocities and trace the 

envelope. 

7. CW the aortic valve to evaluate for aortic stenosis. Obtain the highest velocity and trace the 

envelope. 

8. CW the aortic valve to evaluate for aortic stenosis. Obtain the highest velocity and trace the 

envelope. 

SUBCOSTAL TRANSDUCER POSITION 

Four Chamber View 
1. 2D – Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other anatomy for size, structure, and 

function; take care not to foreshorten the image. 

2. If question of pathology use zoom feature. 

3. Color Doppler – Optimize color scale - Interatrial and interventricular septum – tilt 

transducer anterior and posterior to scan entire IAS and IVS with color Doppler to R/O 

shunt. 

4. Interrogate all cardiac chambers and valves. Angle the transducer as necessary to best show 

the regurgitant jet(s), stenotic jet. 

5. Spectral Doppler – PW and or CW all valves, the interatrial septum (IAS) or 

interventricular septum (IVS) as needed. 

 

Short Axis View  
1. 2D – Left ventricle / papillary muscle level - Assess the LV and papillary muscles and all 

other anatomy for size, structure, and function. 

2. 2D – MV level - Assess the mitral valve and all other anatomy for size, structure, and 

function. 

3. Color Doppler - Can be used if pathology present. 

4. 2D – Basal level - Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other anatomy for size, 

structure, and function as necessary. 

5. Color Doppler - Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other anatomy for function 

as necessary. 

6. Spectral Doppler - Evaluate all cardiac chambers, valves, and other anatomy for 

function as necessary.   

 

Inferior Vena Cava View 

1. 2D - Respiratory variation - Capture a minimum of a 4 beat loop. 

2. Measure maximal diameter, (1 – 2 cm from RA junction), use calc. package, inferior vena 

cava (IVC) to measure. Max diameter should be 1.7 cm or less. 

3. Measure minimal diameter with inspiration, (“sniff”). 

4. Color Doppler and pulsed wave Doppler of the IVC and hepatic veins to further demonstrate 

increased RA pressures.  

5. Assess as much of the IVC for any embolic source if pulmonary embolism is suspected. 

6. Determine RA pressure: 

a. IVC not dilated and > 50% inspiratory collapse = 5 mmHg. 

Page 36 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 8 of 9 
 

b. IVC not dilated and < 50% inspiratory collapse = 10 mmHg. 

c. IVC dilated and > 50% inspiratory collapse = 15 mmHg. 

d. IVC dilated and < 50% inspiratory collapse = 20 mmHg. 

 

Upper Abdominal Aorta View 

1. 2D - Long axis of the vessel in real time, look for abnormalities such as calcific plaque, 

aneurysm, and aortic dissection, (intimal flap). If abnormalities seen or suspected, capture 

additional views including short axis, color Doppler, and spectral Doppler. 

 

 

SUPRASTERNAL TRANSDUCER POSITON (When Indicated) 

1. Reposition patient on back with pillow under shoulders/neck if possible to optimize 

suprasternal notch (SSN) images. 

2. 2D - Long axis aortic arch, if possible visualize branches. Evaluate for calcific plaque, 

aneurysm, and dissection. 

3. Color Doppler - Interrogate arch with color Doppler. 

4. Spectral Doppler – PW and CW ascending and descending aorta for direction of flow 

and max velocity. 

 

AORTIC STENOSIS – The following additional spectral Doppler must be done on all 

patients with aortic stenosis –  

1. With a dedicated CW probe, interrogate the aortic outflow from the apical, right parasternal, 

and suprasternal windows to determine the max aortic velocity. (2 views must be obtained 

with at least 1 clear envelope).   

 

     ADDITIONAL VIEWS AS NEEDED: 

 

A. Saline Contrast Echo should be performed if clinically indicated, in patients with 

unexplained right ventricular dilatation, transient ischemic attack/cerebrovascular accident 

(TIA/CVA) patients, and inpatients with diagnosis of rule out intracardiac shunt when 

color Doppler is negative. Contrast echo must be performed with a Valsalva maneuver and 

Cough. 

 

B. When trauma or disease of the aorta is suspected, the aorta should be interrogated with 2D 

(with diameter measurements), color Doppler, and spectral Doppler, from the following 

windows: Parasternal long and oblique short axis views (aortic root and proximal 

ascending aorta), apical 4 and 2 chamber views (descending thoracic aorta), subcostal 

view (upper abdominal aorta), suprasternal view (aortic arch). 

 

C. Valsalva Maneuver on all patients suspected of having mitral valve prolapse or 

hypertrophic obstructive cardiomyopathy or suspected Pseudonormal-filling pattern.  

 

Page 37 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Echocardiogram Performance Protocol 

Scope:  Echocardiographer Manual: Cardiopulmonary 

Source: Cardiopulmonary Manager Effective Date: 

 

Page 9 of 9 
 

D. All rule out pericardial effusions and post-op cardiac surgical patients must have subcostal 

four chamber and short axis views to rule out loculated pericardial effusion or thrombus 

inferior to the right ventricle or right atrium. 

 

 RESULTS:  The ordering cardiologist or reading cardiologist must be called on all “STAT” 

exams immediately upon completion to notify them the exam is ready to be read.  

 
 

PROCESSING: 

 

 A report is to be opened on the Synapse reporting system to include: 

o All patient demographic information. 

o Indications for exam and pertinent history. 

o A text statement of the significant findings in the appropriate field. 

o Limitations of the exam (segments that could not be evaluated and for what reason) 

  Appropriate billing charges must be entered into the charge system. 

 The reading physician will make additions and changes as necessary, add the conclusions, 

and finalize the report. 

 

      

REFERENCES: 

1. Feigenbaum, H. Echocardiography, Fifth Edition, Williams & Wilkins, 1994 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 
1. Stress Echo 

2. Echocardiography use of Contrast 

3. Lippincott: Transesophageal echocardiography, assisting 

 

_____________________                            __________ 

 

Approval Date 

CCOC 12/3/2020 

Outpatient Medicine Committee 3/4/2021 

Inpatient Medicine Committee 3/10/2021 

Medical Executive Committee 4/6/2021 

Board of Directors  

Last Board of Directors Review  

 

Developed: as 11/30/2020 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 

 

 

Page 38 of 152



 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT MEDICAL STAFF 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Medical Staff Department Policy – Hospital Medicine 

Scope: Hospitalist Practitioners Manual: Medical Staff 

Source: Chief of Inpatient Medicine Effective Date: 

 

Page 1 of 3 

PURPOSE: To delineate clear expectations for practitioners in the Department of Hospital 

Medicine at Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD).  

 

POLICY: All practitioners granted privileges in the Department of Hospital Medicine will 

adhere to the following protocols. 

 

PROTOCOL: 
1. Admissions and Consults 

a. Any admission or consultation called to the Physician will become the 

responsibility of that Physician. If the admission or consult is called to Physician 

during the final 60 minutes of their shift AND the admission along with 

uncompleted work from his/her shift would significantly prevent the Physician 

from completing their shift in a reasonable amount of time, the Physician may 

choose to hand-off the admission or other work to the oncoming hospitalist, 

within reason. This decision must be made in mutual agreement with the 

Emergency Department (ED) physician AND the Physician must make every 

effort to not slow throughput in the ED or delay patient care. Exceptions to the 

hand-off would be if the admission or consultation is an ICU patient, critically ill, 

requires time sensitive testing or treatment, or there are more than one other 

pending admission(s) in the ED. 

2. Credentialing: 

a. Physician practitioners in the Department of Hospital Medicine must be board 

certified or board eligible by the American Board of Family Medicine or the 

American Board of Internal Medicine and are strongly encouraged to be members 

of the Society of Hospital Medicine. 

3. Emergencies/Codes: 

a. Physician shall respond to in-house emergencies in the same manner as other 

members of the Medical Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital. If physician is not in 

house, he/she is expected to return to the hospital within 20 minutes. 

4. In-House Coverage 

a. Physicians performing Hospitalist Services are not required to be in house at all 

times however, they are generally expected to be in house from 8 am to 5 pm if 

not longer for a full census. It is the expectation that day shift hospitalist will be 

fully prepared (have seen all patients and reviewed all charts) for the morning 

Multidisciplinary Team meeting and will fully participate in the discussion of 

each patient presented. Night shift Physician is encouraged but not required to 

stay in-house and utilize the hospitalist call room especially if the Emergency 

Department is busy, the census is full or there is a critically ill or concerning 

patient(s). If Physician is off-campus, they are still expected to answer all calls, 

enter their own orders and return to the hospital for patient care within twenty 

(20) minutes. At any point in time, Hospitalist Director or Chief of Inpatient 

Medicine may request a revocation of off-campus privileges and may request 

Physician to provide in-house coverage for the entirety of their 12 hour shift. 

 

Page 39 of 152



 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT MEDICAL STAFF 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Medical Staff Department Policy – Hospital Medicine 

Scope: Hospitalist Practitioners Manual: Medical Staff 

Source: Chief of Inpatient Medicine Effective Date: 

 

Page 2 of 3 

5. Response time 

a. Physician shall respond to NIHD Emergency Department or other NIHD staff 

requests within twenty (20) minutes of call. If the request is for an admission or 

consultation, a reasonable goal is to see the patient within 20 minutes so as to 

formulate a plan and disposition. If the Physician is otherwise preoccupied with 

patient care that takes a higher precedence such as a critically ill patient, 

Physician will discuss with ED physician or other NIHD staff to let them know 

when they can reasonably expect to see the patient. Every effort should be made 

to see the patient, determine disposition and have orders in one (1) hour after 

admission request. 

6. Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE): 

a. Practitioners new to NIHD will be expected to complete FPPE as per policy. 

Hospitalists sign out to each other at the start/end of each shift so multiple charts 

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Verbal sign outs are the standard (email sign 

outs are acceptable but the exception) and feedback is given in real time. Peer 

review results and Unusual Occurrence Reports are incorporated into FPPE as 

appropriate.  

7. Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE): 

a. Practitioners will be expected to participate in all requirements of OPPE as per 

medical staff policy. Hospitalists sign out to each other at the start/end of each 

shift so multiple charts are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Verbal sign outs are the 

standard (email sign outs are acceptable but the exception) and feedback is given 

in real time. Peer review results and Unusual Occurrence Reports are incorporated 

into OPPE as appropriate. 

8. Peer Review:   

a. Inpatient charts identified by critical indicators will all be subject to peer review 

as per the peer review policy.  

9. Re-Entry: 

a. Hospitalist practitioners may be eligible for re-entry per policy.  

10. Services Provided 

a. Physician should address and/or manage, within the scope of their training and 

responsibility, all internal medicine issues, as requested for all patients admitted 

to NIHD. Physician should also provide consultation and management services to 

patients as requested by NIHD Medical Staff members, visiting Specialist 

Physicians, the Emergency Department, and other departments as appropriate. 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Northern Inyo Healthcare District Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Approval Date 

Inpatient Medicine Committee 03/17/2021 

Medical Executive Committee 04/06/2021 

Board  of Directors  

Page 40 of 152



 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT MEDICAL STAFF 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Medical Staff Department Policy – Hospital Medicine 

Scope: Hospitalist Practitioners Manual: Medical Staff 

Source: Chief of Inpatient Medicine Effective Date: 

 

Page 3 of 3 

Last Board of Directors Review  

 

Developed: 02/2021 je 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 

Supersedes:  

Index Listings: 

 

 

Page 41 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn  

Scope: Hospital Wide  Manual: Perinatal  

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager  Effective Date: 12/22/20 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

PURPOSE:  
1. To ensure that properly trained personnel are on duty to immediately act to resuscitate 

and stabilize newborns if needed and to ensure clarity of roles during a resuscitation 

event. A designated NRP certified RN dedicated solely to infant stabilization will attend 

every delivery.  

 

POLICY: 
1.  All RNs working within the Perinatal Unit who care for newborns will have current 

documentation of completion of Neonatal Resuscitation Program from the AAP/AHA 

within 3 months of hire. 

2. The NRP guidelines will direct all newborn stabilization and resuscitation. 

3. All events requiring NRP intervention will be reviewed by the unit manager in a timely 

manner.  

4. A Code Blue Critique will be completed after every Code Blue by the RN lead and House 

Supervisor.   

5. All codes will be peer reviewed as a critical indicator for the Pediatric Providers.  

6. All codes will be reviewed by the Resuscitation Committee.  

7. Neonatal Resuscitation Record, scanned into the Newborn’s Medical Record if used. 

8. Equipment and supplies will be checked each shift and prior to each delivery to assure 

proper working order and availability of resuscitation equipment.  

 

PROCEDURE: 
1. Neonatal Resuscitation will be performed in the manner specified by the most current 

AHA/AAP Neonatal Resuscitation Program edition.  

2. The RN lead will be filled by the Perinatal RN designated to care for the infant.   

3. The RN lead always have responsibility for assigning APGARS scores.  

4. The RN lead will notify staff to call the Pediatric Provider if they are needed and are not 

already present.  

5. The RN lead will determine the need for and initiate a code blue when Pediatric Provider 

is not immediately available. Reference the Code Blue Procedure-Code Blue Team 

Policy for clarification of responsibilities and roles of each team member.  

6. The lead RN will be in charge of performing or delegating all resuscitation efforts until 

either the Code Blue Team or the Pediatric Provider (Pediatrician or Family Physician 

with appropriate neonatal privileges) arrives to the bedside. 

7. Other available medical providers may participate in a NRP event but roles will by 

assigned by the RN lead.  

8. All procedures, treatments, and medications will be communicated to the recorder to 

ensure complete and timely documentation. 

9. Ensure that noise and unnecessary conversations are kept to a minimum. 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn  

Scope: Hospital Wide  Manual: Perinatal  

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager  Effective Date: 12/22/20 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

REFERENCES: 

1. Neonatal Resuscitation 7th Edition AHA/AAP 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Code Blue Procedure-Code Blue Team 

 

Approval Date 

CCOC 1/12/2021 

Peri-Peds Committee  12/22/2020 

Resuscitation Committee 2/16/2021 

Medical Executive Committee 4/6/2021 

Board  of Directors  

Last Board of Directors Review  

 

Developed: 12/20 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 

 

 

Page 43 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Admission of the Well Newborn 

Scope: Perinatal Manual: Perinatal 

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager Effective Date: 9/19/19 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

PURPOSE 

To ensure well newborns receive immediate and short-term ongoing assessment, care, and timely administration 

of prophylactic ophthalmic erythromycin to prevent opthalmia neonatorum, intramuscular Hepatitis B vaccine 

for perinatal Hepatitis B prevention, and intramuscular Vitamin K to prevent Vitamin K deficient bleeding 

(VKDB) pending notification of the pediatrician and receipt of physician orders for continuing care.  

 

POLICY 

It is the policy of Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) that all well newborns will be assessed and 

provided care upon admission under the direction of a Registered Nurse (RN) with annual documented 

competencies following this Standardized Procedure.  All well newborns will receive prophylactic 

administration of erythromycin ophthalmic ointment, Hepatitis B vaccine, and Vitamin K by an RN/LVN, 

unless there is a documented refusal by the parent, under this Standardized Procedure.  

 

PROCEDURE 

1. Experience, Training, and/or Education Requirements of the RN 

a. Current California RN licensure  

b. Current Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) card 

c. Successful completion of orientation to newborn care at NIHD 

2. Method of Initial and Continued Evaluation of Competence 

a. Initial evaluation: successful completion and demonstration of competency and clinical decision 

making in assessment of the newborn, as documented in the unit-specific clinical competency 

orientation checklist. 

b. Ongoing evaluation: annual completion of education activity on newborn assessment and 

administrations of prophylactic medications to a neonate. 

3. Maintenance of Records of those authorized in Standardized Procedure 

a. A list of RNs competent to perform this standardized procedure is maintained with the Chief 

Nursing Officer and is updated annually. 

4. Settings where Standardized Procedure may be preformed 

a. Admission of a well newborn and administration of prophylactic medications may take place in 

the Perinatal unit at the mother’s bedside, newborn nursery, or in the Post Anesthesia Care Unit. 

5. Standardized Procedure 

a. Circumstance under which Standardized Procedure may be performed: 

i. Well newborn delivered at NIHD 

b. Procedure 

i. The RN will perform an admission assessment according to policy 

ii. The RN will initiate the Newborn Admission Orders: 

 Code Status: 

o Full Code 

 When to call Pediatrician: 

Page 44 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Admission of the Well Newborn 

Scope: Perinatal Manual: Perinatal 

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager Effective Date: 9/19/19 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

o  Call Peds between 0630-0730 to inform them of any delivery after 5pm the 

previous day.  

o  If born before 5pm, call Peds ASAP 

 Please call Pediatrician immediately, at any hour, in the event of: 

o Infant requiring resuscitation efforts following birth 

o Maternal Chorioamnionitis 

o Maternal GBS positive without adequate maternal antibiotic coverage if infant 

is <37 weeks or ROM ≥18 hours even if otherwise well 

o Immediately for infant fever ≥100.4°F 

o Immediately for other concerns that cannot wait until normal rounding time 

o If indicated per Pulse Ox Screening, Hyperbilirubinemia, or Hypoglycemia 

policies 

 Vital signs every 30 minutes x4 and PRN  

 Vital signs every 8 hours for the term, uncomplicated infant born via vaginal birth  

 Vital signs every 4 hours x24 hours, then every 8 hours for infants born via c-section 

 Vital signs every 4 hours for infants <37 weeks gestation 

 Infant diet: Breastfeed only unless maternal refusal or medical need per policy 

o Breastfeed on demand. 

 Oximetry per protocol  

 Drugs of abuse screen  

o Urine collection for drug screen if mother’s drug screen is positive  

 Newborn hearing screening before discharge  

 Newborn Screening Test before discharge  

 Bili scan at 24 hours or earlier, then daily until discharge  

 Bili Scan PRN for worsening jaundice or any jaundice prior to 24 hours of age 

 Congenital heart disease screen at 24 hours  

 Sweet Ease for pain control only  

 Pacifier use for pain control only unless requested by parent and pacifier use education 

provided 

 Collect cord blood workup specimen 

 Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment 0.5 % 1 application within 2 hours of delivery  

 Phytonadione IM (Vitamin K1) Give 1 mg. Give within 2 hours of delivery 

 Heel Stick Blood Sugar per Newborn Blood Sugar Monitoring Policy  

 Hepatitis B Virus Vaccine (PF) IM (Engerix-B) 0.5 mL within 24 hours if mother is 

Hepatitis B negative. Give as soon as possible within 12 hours of age if mother is Hep 

B positive or unknown.  

o Notify Pediatric Provider on call during normal office hours if the mother is 

Hep. B positive  

 Cholecalciferol Oral Drops 400 unit every day. Start day of discharge 

Page 45 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Admission of the Well Newborn 

Scope: Perinatal Manual: Perinatal 

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager Effective Date: 9/19/19 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

o 400 IU = 1 DROP Q day to start on the day of discharge. 

 

6. Review of Standardized Procedure 

a.  Standardized procedures are reviewed and approved annually by the Interdisciplinary Practice 

Committee. 

 

REFERENCES: 
1. American Academy of Pediatrics & College of Obstetricians and Gynecologist (2017). Guidelines for 

Perinatal Care (8th ed.). Elk Grove Village, IL: Author 

2. Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (2009). Standards & Guidelines for 

Professional Nursing Practice in the Care of Women and Newborns (7th ed.). Washington DC: Author 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Admission, Care, Discharge and Transfer of the Newborn 

2. Breastfeeding the Term Infant 

3. Drugs of Abuse Maternal and Infant 

4. BiliChek Transcutaneous Bilirubin Testing 

5. Newborn Pulse Oximetry Screen 

6. Newborn Hearing Screening Program 

7. Newborn Blood Glucose Monitoring 

 

Approval Date 

CCOC 1/12/2021 

Interdisciplinary Practice Committee 03/18/2021 

P&T 02/18/2021 

PeriPeds Committee 12/22/2020 

Medical Executive Committee 04/06/2021 

Board  of Directors 
 

Last Board of Directors Review 
 

 

Developed: 12/21/2018 

Reviewed: 12/22/20jmt 

Revised: 

 

 

Page 46 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Reporting of  COVID-19 Laboratory Results 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Infection Prevention  

Source: Director of Quality and Infection 

Prevention  

Effective Date:  

 

PURPOSE 

To ensure COVID-19 results are communicated to both patients and County Public Health 

Departments in a timely manner. 

POLICY 

It is the policy of Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) that all send out COVID-19 test 

results at Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) will be communicated to an Infection 

Prevention Nurse.  The Infection Prevention Nurse will notify the patient and applicable County 

Public Health Departments of the positive test results. Negative test results will be 

communicated to Emergency Department patients only under this standardized procedure. 

PROCEDURE 

1. Experience, Training, and/or Education Requirements of the RN 

a. Current California RN licensure  

2. Method of Initial and Continued Evaluation of Competence 

a. Initial evaluation: successful completion and demonstration of competency and 

clinical decision making as demonstrated through policy review and completion 

of Infection Prevention COVID-19 Result Reporting Test with score of 100%. 

b. Ongoing evaluation: annual policy review and completion of Infection Prevention 

COVID-19 Result Reporting Test with score of 100%. 

3. Maintenance of Records of those authorized in Standardized Procedure 

a. A list of RNs competent to perform this standardized procedure is maintained 

with the Chief Nursing Officer and is updated annually. 

4. Settings where Standardized Procedure may be preformed 

a. The Standardized Procedure for COVID-19 result reporting may take place in the 

Infection Prevention Department, for any COVID-19 positive patient result 

obtained within the District and negative results obtained in the Emergency 

Department. 

5. Standardized Procedure 

a. Circumstance under which Standardized Procedure may be performed: 

i. Any positive COVID-19 Laboratory result obtained at NIHD or negative 

result obtained in the Emergency Department.  

b. Procedure 

i. The Laboratory Department will notify the Infection Prevention Nurse of 

all COVID-19 test results. 

ii. Infection Prevention RN will notify the patient of the positive or negative, 

if obtained in Emergency Department, COVID-19 result. 

Page 47 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Reporting of  COVID-19 Laboratory Results 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Infection Prevention  

Source: Director of Quality and Infection 

Prevention  

Effective Date:  

 

1. Between the hours of 0900 and 1800 the Infection prevention RN 

will immediately notify the patient of the COVID-19 result. 

2. Results reported after 1800 will be communicated to the patient the 

next day. 

a. Documentation of patient communication in the Electronic 

Health Record (EHR) will include: 

i. Positive Result: 

1. Communication of COVID-19 result 

2. Review of and reference to CDC 

recommendations for isolation and 

prevention of transmission 

3. Instruction to contact their primary care 

provider  

4. Instruction that Inyo County Public Health 

Department will be contacting them for 

contact tracing and return to work 

instructions 

5. Instruction to notify their employer 

6. Review that for any additional questions or 

concerns to please contact their primary care 

provider and if you have an emergency 

medical condition please call 911 or present 

to the Emergency Department.  

ii. Negative Results: 

1. Communication of COVID-19 result 

2. Review of and reference to CDC 

recommendations for quarantine and 

prevention of transmission 

3. Instruction to contact their primary care 

provider if symptoms do not improve 

4. Review that for any additional questions or 

concerns to please contact their primary care 

provider and if you have an emergency 

medical condition please call 911 or present 

to the Emergency Department.  

Page 48 of 152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Reporting of  COVID-19 Laboratory Results 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Infection Prevention  

Source: Director of Quality and Infection 

Prevention  

Effective Date:  

 

iii. Infection Prevention will notify applicable County Public Health 

Departments of positive COVID-19 results.  

1. Documentation of County Public Health Department 

communication: 

a. Inyo County communication of results via secure email/fax 

b. All other county communication is completed via 

Confidential Morbidity Report (CMR) 

iv. Infection Prevention RN will document Positive COVID-19 status in alert 

field in EHR  

6. Other specialized circumstances requiring RN to contact physician  

a. None 

7. Review of Standardized Procedure 

a.  Standardized procedures are reviewed and approved annually by the 

Interdisciplinary Practice Committee. 

 

REFERENCES: 

1. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2021, February 13). Interim Guidance on 

Duration of Isolation and Precautions for Adults with COVID-19. 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/duration-isolation.html  

2. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2021, February 3). Information for Health 

Departments on Reporting Cases of COVID-19. Retrieved from 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/reporting-pui.html 

3. Westlaw California Code of Regulations. (2021). Barclays Official California Code of 

Regulations 17 CA ADC § 35055. Retrieved from 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2599B8C0D60711DE88AEDDE29ED1DC

0A?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPa

geItem&contextData=(sc.Default)  

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1. Aerosolized Transmissible Disease Exposure Plan/Respiratory Protection Program* 

2. Lippincott Procedures (Revised: May 15, 2020). Reportable Disease. Retrieved from 

https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reporting,reported

,report,reports&a=false&ad=false 

Page 49 of 152

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/duration-isolation.html
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2599B8C0D60711DE88AEDDE29ED1DC0A?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2599B8C0D60711DE88AEDDE29ED1DC0A?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2599B8C0D60711DE88AEDDE29ED1DC0A?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reporting,reported,report,reports&a=false&ad=false
https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reporting,reported,report,reports&a=false&ad=false


NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standardized Procedure for Reporting of  COVID-19 Laboratory Results 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Infection Prevention  

Source: Director of Quality and Infection 

Prevention  

Effective Date:  

 

 

Approval Date 

Interdisciplinary Practice Committee 3/23/21 

Infection Prevention Committee 3/24/21 

Medical Executive Committee 4/6/21 

Board  of Directors  

Last Board of Directors Review  

 

Developed: 03/09/2021 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 

Supersedes:  

Index Listings: 

Page 50 of 152



Chief of Staff
Sierra Bourne, MD

Chair of Outpatient 
Medicine

Anne Wakamiya, MD 

Chair of Peri-Peds
 Martha Kim, MD

Chair of Inpatient 
Medicine

Monika Mehrens, DO 

Chair of ED
Adam Hawkins, DO 

Chair of STTA
 Robbin Cromer-Tyler, 

MD

Chair of Radiology
 Ed Pillsbury, MD

Vice Chief of Staff
Anne Wakamiya, MD

Chief of Anesthesia
[vacant] 

Chief of Surgery
 Robbin Cromer-Tyler, 

MD

Chief of Orthopedics
Richard Meredick, 

MD 

Chief of Inpatient 
Medicine

 Monika Mehrens, DO

Chief of Pediatrics
Kristin Meredick, MD

Chief of Obstetrics
Martha Kim, MD 

Chief of Outpatient 
Medicine

Anne Wakamiya, MD 

Chief of ED
Adam Hawkins, DO 

Chief of Radiology
Ed Pillsbury, MD 

Orthopedics
 

Anesthesiology
 

General Surgery
 

Surgical 
Subspecialties

(Uro, Ophthal, Plastics, Gyn)

Hospitalists
 

Family Med 
Physicians and APPs

 

Pediatrics
 

Obstetrics & 
Gynecology

 

Nurse Anesthesia
 

Emergency Medicine
 

Radiology
 

Podiatry
 

Internal Med 
Physicians and APPs

 

Telemedicine
 

Medical Executive Committee

Departments/Specialties

Department Chiefs

Committee Chairs

New Medical Staff Governance Structure
Bylaws Effective 3/19/2021

Rev. 4/6/2021

Note: A Chair and Chief may be the same individual. Chairs and Chiefs are elected positions.

+ Member-at-Large (Sarah Zuger, MD)
+ Immediate Past Chief of Staff (Charlotte Helvie, MD)

Pathology
 

Page 51 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      March 10, 2021 

Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  

      

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair   

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Jean Turner, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

      Officer 

Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer 

 

 

Mr. Sharp reported at this time, members of the audience may speak only 

on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be limited 

to a maximum of three minutes each.  The Board is prohibited from 

generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the Notice 

for this meeting.  No comments were heard. 

 

At 6:04 pm Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

1. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Agency Designated 

Representative:  Irma Moisa; Employee Organization:  AFSCME 

Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6). 

Mr. Sharp noted that the Board did not anticipate that any reportable 

action would be announced following the conclusion of Closed Session. 

 

 

At 7:10 pm the meeting returned to Open Session.  Mr. Sharp reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:11 pm. 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

_________________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

 

         Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 52 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      March 14, 2021 

Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  

      

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 2:02 pm by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair   

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Jean Turner, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

      Officer 

 

 

 

Mr. Sharp reported at this time, members of the audience may speak only 

on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be limited 

to a maximum of three minutes each.  The Board is prohibited from 

generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the Notice 

for this meeting.  No comments were heard. 

 

At 2:03 pm Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

A. Conduct a Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to  

Government Code Section 54957(b)).  Title:  Interim Chief 

Executive Officer. 

 

Mr. Sharp noted that the Board did not anticipate that any reportable 

action would be announced following the conclusion of Closed Session. 

 

At 3:42 pm the meeting returned to Open Session.  Mr. Sharp reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:43 pm. 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

_________________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

 

         Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 53 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                       March 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of 5  

      

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

COVID 19 UPDATE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary  

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Jean Turner, Member-at-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

    Officer 

William Timbers MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer   

Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer 

Charlotte Helvie MD, Chief of Staff  

Keith Collins, General Legal Counsel (Jones & Mayer) 

 

Mr. Sharp announced that the purpose of public comment is to allow 

members of the public to address the Board of Directors.  Public 

comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty 

(30) minutes being allowed for all public comment unless otherwise 

modified by the Chair.  Speaking time may not be granted and/or loaned 

to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time 

unless arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of 

speakers to have a spokesperson speak on their behalf.  Comments must 

be kept brief and non-repetitive.  The general Public Comment portion of 

the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction 

of the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda.  Public 

comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is 

considered.  Comments were heard from Kelli Davis, who acknowledged 

Charlotte Helvie MD’s years of service to this community as well as her 

many contributions toward improving healthcare services in this area.  

 

 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Interim Chief Executive 

Officer and Chief Operating Officer Kelli Davis, MBA provided a Covid 

19 update which included the following: 

- Covid 19 Incident Command meetings continue.  Key healthcare 

partners and community stakeholders participate in meetings with 

NIHD on a weekly basis. 

- Covid hospitalizations remain stable.  NIHD staff and providers 

have fine-tuned Covid-specific patient care procedures, and they 

should be commended for their continued commitment and on the 

high level of quality care they are providing.  

- NIHD continues to partner with the County of Inyo on community 

vaccination efforts.  The vaccination program for area residents 

has been extremely well organized and highly successful thus far. 

Page 54 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                       March 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of 5  

 

 

 

 

MOMENT OF 

APPRECIATION FOR 

DISTRICT STAFF AND 

PROVIDERS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT BOARD 

RESOLUTION 21-02 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

POLICY AND 

PROCEDURE 

APPROVAL, 

STABILATION OF THE 

NEWBORN 

 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER SEARCH FIRM 

SELECTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPOINTMENT OF 

BOARD MEMBERS TO 

NIHD/SMHD JOINT 

RELATIONS 

COMMITTEE 

 

- Then District anticipates new CDPH guidance soon on opening up 

and/or loosening of protocols as our Covid numbers continue to 

improve. 

 

The District Board took a moment to appreciate District staff and 

providers for the exemplary job they continue to do during the Covid 19 

pandemic.  Mr. Sharp specifically commented on a letter of appreciation 

received for Oscar Lopez and the NIHD Care Shuttle staff, and 

additionally acknowledged the service of Charlotte Helvie MD who will 

move out of the area soon leaving patient care in the community better 

than it was when she arrived.  The Board additionally thanked William 

Timbers MD for stepping up to serve as Interim Chief Medical Officer for 

the District during extremely difficult times and during the Covid 19 

pandemic. 

 

Mr. Sharp called attention to proposed District Board Resolution 21-02, 

which authorizes the District’s purchase of the Pioneer Medical 

Associates (PMA) partnership interest owned by Nickoline Hathaway MD 

and Asao Kamei MD, for a price of $1,017,488.  It was moved by Mary 

Mae Kilpatrick, seconded by Jody Veenker, and unanimously passed to 

approve District Board Resolution 21-02 as presented, formally 

acknowledging the District’s purchase of the PMA partnership interest 

previously owned by Nickoline Hathaway MD and Asao Kamei MD. 

 

Mr. Sharp also called attention to a proposed District-wide Policy and 

Procedure titled Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn, noting 

that the Policy will first go to the Medical Executive Committee for 

approval prior to being approved by the District Board.  The Policy will 

be placed on a future Board agenda once it has been approved by the 

NIHD Medical Executive Committee. 

 

Director Jean Turner called attention to four proposals received from 

prospective Chief Executive Officer Search firms, and to the minutes of a 

Board of Directors Ad Hoc Committee meeting where those proposals 

were reviewed and considered.  She stated that it is the recommendation 

of the NIHD Board Ad Hoc Committee to select AMN Healthcare to be 

the firm used to conduct the search for the District’s next Chief Executive 

Officer.  Following review of the materials provided it was moved by Ms. 

Veenker, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously passed to approve 

entering into an agreement with AMN Healthcare to conduct the search 

for NIHD’s next Chief Executive Officer. 

 

Mr. Sharp reported he recently met with two Southern Mono Healthcare 

District (SMHD) Board members to discuss the possibility of establishing 

a Joint Relations/Problem Resolution and Regional Cooperation Ad Hoc 

Committee for the purpose of improving communication and 

collaboration between the two Healthcare Districts. Following brief 

discussion it was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Turner and 

Page 55 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                       March 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of 5  

 

 

 

CHIEF OF STAFF 

REPORT 

 

POLICY AND 

PROCEDURE 

APPROVALS 

 

ANNUAL APPROVALS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF AND 

APP[ STAFF 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF 

REAPPOINTMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR 

ADDITIONAL 

PRIVILEGES 

 

 

unanimously passed to appoint Directors Sharp and Veenker to serve on a 

Joint Relations Committee with SMHD (Mammoth Hospital).  Chief 

Nursing Officer Allison Partridge also indicated that she would be happy 

to participate in those collaborative meetings. 

 

 

Chief of Staff Charlotte Helvie MD reported following careful review, 

consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical 

Executive Committee recommends approval of the following annual 

approvals: 

1. Anesthesia Critical Indicators 

2. Surgery Critical Indicators 

3. Perinatal Critical Indicators 

4. Neonatal Critical Indicators 

5. Pediatrics Critical Indicators 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 

passed to approve all 5 annual approvals as presented. 

 

Doctor Helvie additionally reported following careful review, 

consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical 

Executive Committee recommends approval of the following Medical 

Staff and Advanced Practice Provider (APP) appointments: 

1. Jeffrey La Rochelle, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

2. Ali Kasraeian, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

3. Arin Stephens, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider 

Staff 

4. Vanessa Blasic, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider 

Staff 

5. Joceyln Moll, FNP-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider 

Staff 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Topah Spoonhunter, and 

unanimously passed to approve all 5 NIHD Medical Staff and APP Staff 

appointments as requested. 

 

Doctor Helvie also reported that the NIHD Medical Executive Committee 

recommends the following Medical Staff re-appointment for Calendar 

years 2021 and 2022: 

1. Arrash Fard, MD (cardiology) – Adventist Health Telemedicine.  

Category: Telemedicine 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and 

unanimously passed to approve the Medical Staff re-appointment of 

Arrash Fard MD for calendar years 2021 and 2022 as requested. 

 

Doctor Helvie additionally reported that the Medical Executive 

Committee recommends the granting of additional privileges for the  

following NIHD Medical Staff members: 

1. Anne Wakamiya, MD (internal medicine) – request for privileges  

 

Page 56 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                       March 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 4 of 5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF 

RESIGNATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBER 

COMMITTEE UPDATES 

 

in Stress Test interpretation 

2. Daniel Firer, MD (family medicine/emergency medicine) – request 

for privileges in Bedside Ultrasound following completion of 

required coursework 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 

passed to approve both requests for additional privileges as presented. 

 

Doctor Helvie also reported the Medical Executive Committee 

recommends approval of the following Medical Staff resignations: 

1. Michael Rhodes, MD (internal medicine) – effective 11/24/20 

2. Sheila Cai, MD (psychiatry, Adventist Health) – effective 1/15/21 

3. Armand Rostamian, MD (cardiology, Adventist Health) – 

effective 11/9/20 

It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and unanimously 

passed to approve all 3 Medical Staff resignations as requested. 

 

Doctor Helvie additionally reported that Medical Staff Committees 

continue to meet on a regular basis to help ensure the quality of patient 

care, including the Medical Staff Bylaws Committee; the Inpatient 

Medicine Committee; the Antibiotic Stewardship Committee; the 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee, and the Medical Executive 

Committee.  She also reported that the Medical Staff recently selected 

Stacey Brown MD; Monika Mehrens DO; and Casey Solomon RT to be 

honored as the Covid 19 heroes for the month of March 2021. 

 

Mr. Sharp called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting, which 

contained the following items: 

1. Approval of minutes of the February 17 2021 regular meeting 

2. Approval of minutes of the February 20 2021 special meeting 

3. Approval of minutes of the February 27 2021 special meeting 

4. Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer 

report 

5. Interim Chief Medical Officer report 

6. Chief Nursing Officer report 

7. Financial and Statistical reports as of January 31, 2021 

8. Compliance Department quarterly report 

9. Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

10. Cerner Implementation update 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and passed by 

a 4 to 0 vote to approve the minutes for the February 17 2021 regular 

meeting, with Director Turner abstaining from the vote due to the fact that 

she was absent from that meeting.  It was then moved by Ms. Turner, 

seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and unanimously passed to approve all 9 

remaining Consent Agenda items as presented. 

 

Mr. Sharp asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 

report on their attendance at any District meetings.  Director Turner  

 

Page 57 of 152



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                       March 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 5 of 5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBER 

REPORTS 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

reported that she participated in Association of California Healthcare 

Districts (ACHD) meetings in the month of January, and that the ACHD 

annual meeting will be scheduled in September 2021.  Director Kilpatrick 

reported that she recently attended the NIHD Medical Surgical Committee 

meeting, as well as the Chief Executive Officer Leadership Committee 

meeting.  No other reports were heard. 

 

Mr. Sharp asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 

comment on any additional items of interest.  No comments were heard. 

 

At 6:17 pm Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Agency Designated 

Representative:  Irma Moisa; Employee Organization: AFSCME 

Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6). 

B. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to 

Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1).  Name of case:  Robin Cassidy 

v. Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

C. Discuss significant exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government 

Code Section 54956.9), one case. 

Mr. Sharp noted that no action was expected to be reported out following 

the conclusion of Closed Session. 

 

At 6:54 pm the meeting returned to Open Session.  Mr. Sharp reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:54 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

 

 

         Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 58 of 152



Page 59 of 152



Page 60 of 152



Page 61 of 152



Page 62 of 152



Page 63 of 152



Page 64 of 152



Page 65 of 152



Page 66 of 152



Page 67 of 152



Page 68 of 152



Page 69 of 152



Page 70 of 152



Page 71 of 152



Page 72 of 152



Page 73 of 152



Page 74 of 152



Page 75 of 152



Page 76 of 152



Page 77 of 152



Page 78 of 152



Page 79 of 152



Page 80 of 152



Page 81 of 152



Page 82 of 152



Page 83 of 152



Page 84 of 152



Page 85 of 152



Page 86 of 152



Page 87 of 152



Page 88 of 152



Page 89 of 152



Page 90 of 152



Page 91 of 152



Page 92 of 152



Page 93 of 152



Page 94 of 152



Page 95 of 152



Page 96 of 152



Page 97 of 152



Page 98 of 152



Page 99 of 152



Page 100 of 152



Page 101 of 152



Page 102 of 152



Page 103 of 152



Page 104 of 152



Page 105 of 152



Page 106 of 152



Page 107 of 152



Page 108 of 152



Page 109 of 152



Page 110 of 152



Page 111 of 152



Page 112 of 152



Page 113 of 152



Page 114 of 152



Page 115 of 152



Page 116 of 152



Page 117 of 152



Page 118 of 152



Page 119 of 152



Page 120 of 152



Page 121 of 152



Page 122 of 152



Page 123 of 152



Page 124 of 152



Page 125 of 152



Page 126 of 152



Page 127 of 152



Page 128 of 152



Page 129 of 152



Page 130 of 152



Page 131 of 152



Page 132 of 152



Page 133 of 152



Page 134 of 152



Page 135 of 152



Page 136 of 152



Page 137 of 152



Page 138 of 152



Page 1 
 

         NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR INFORMATION 
Date: April 9, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

 

Top Accomplishments for this Reporting Period 
1. Integration Test Events:  On April 15, we will complete our third and final round of integration testing.  The 

purpose of the testing events is to identify any issues with our workflows or the system configuration settings.  
Over the course of the three testing rounds, we tested one hundred three different patient scenarios.  We 
worked through identified workflow issues and made modifications.  We also logged seventy-two service 
requests with Cerner to make configuration changes.   

 
As part of the third round of testing, we tested interfaces (e.g. OmniCell medication dispensing, Bedside 
Monitoring) as well as equipment (e.g., barcode scanners, printers).  This gives us a well-rounded view of how 
the Cerner system, new equipment, and our workflows all come together. 
 

2. Project Communication:  The communication team continues to publish it’s bi-weekly project newsletter 
providing all staff with pertinent project information.  Additionally, they publish a monthly provide update 
report and a monthly provider podcast. 

 
The communication teams is also in charge of creating project related fun activities.  This past month they had a 
golden egg hunt.  There were ten golden eggs hidden on the campus.  Individuals who found the eggs received 
prizes. 

 
3. End User Training: Our super users have prepared for nearly seven months to be our end-user instructors.  They 

have participated in data gathering, design decisions, and system testing.  Cerner has a Learning Management 
System called Learning Journey.  Our super users were assigned learning journeys that consisted of videos and 
interactive simulations.  Most recently, they completed their lesson plans using sample curriculum and 
competency check lists provided by Cerner.  All end-users have received their training schedule. 
 

4. Provider Training: Final plans have been completed for provider training.  Providers will be grouped by specialty 
(e.g., clinic providers, surgery, ED) so that training can incorporate both EHR system training and specialty 
specific workflow training.   Invitations will be sent to providers the week of April 12. 
 
 

Page 139 of 152



Date: March 5, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

Page 2 
 

5. Multiview Financial Application Conversion / Go-Live:  The Multiview financial suite went live on April 1.  The 
team has worked through minor issues.  One issue was logged as a service request and has since been resolved.  
There are currently no active issues.     
 

6. Cerner Conversion / Go-Live Planning:  We are developing the conversion/go-live plan.  The plan will include the 
staffing and methodology to provide end-user support along with contact information.  It will also define the 
issue reporting process and command center roles and responsibilities.  The comprehensive plan will be 
provided to senior leadership, department managers, subject matter experts, and super users. 
 

Issues or Concerns the Board of Directors Should Be Aware Of 
1. Athena Health Data Export:  As part of our contractual agreement with Athena Health, they are obligated to 

provide us with a copy of our patient data.  We requested a data copy on February 24, 2021.  As of April 9, 2021, 
we have not received the copy.  On April 8, 2021, Kelli Davis contacted Athena Health to escalate our request.   
This copy is essential to smoothly transition to Cerner on May 17, 2021. 

 
2. Unit Charge Testing:  All chargeable items must be tested before go-live to ensure we are correctly dropping 

charges to patient bills.  As of April 9, 2021, we have tested approximately 51% of our charges which is behind 
schedule.  Department managers have been made aware and are working with their teams to complete the 
testing. 

 

Upcoming Events or Milestones 
1. End User Training:   Our super users/class instructors 

will lead our end-user training.  Students class time will 
vary depending on the student’s role in the 
organization and the number of departments they 
work in.  Most students will participate in somewhere 
between six to twelve hours of classes. 

 
Most classes will be conducted in-person.  We have 
designated several meeting rooms as classrooms.  
Equipment including laptops, printers, barcode scanners have been deployed.   
 
There are a few classes that will be conducted via zoom.  These classes are made available to staff who 
traditionally don’t work on campus like our HIM coders. 

 
2. Provider Training: Instructors provided by Cerner will lead our provider training classes.  These classes will be 

held the week of April 26.  The sessions will be delivered in person along with being broadcast via Microsoft 
Teams meetings.  This approach allows us to deliver training to our providers on campus and our travelling 
providers that are not on campus.  

 
3. Provider Concierge: Cerner will be on site the week of May 3, to assist providers with setting up their system 

favorites.   Providers will be scheduled to attend a thirty-minute session.  These sessions will either be small 
groups of no more than three providers or may be held one on one with providers. 

 
4. Go-Live: Final planning for our go-live on May 17 is well underway. 

 
 
 

Upcoming Event Calendar 

• End User Training  April 12 – May 15 

• Provider Training  April 27 – 29 

• Provider Concierge  May 4 – 6 

• Go-Live Support  May 17 - 28 

Page 140 of 152



Date: March 5, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

Page 3 
 

     Prepared by:  _Daryl Duenkel, Project Manager, Wipfli__ 
       Name and Title 
 

     Reviewed by:  __________________________________ 
       Name  
       Title of Chief who reviewed 
 

      Approved by:  __________________________________ 
        Name 
        Title of Chief who approved 
 

FOR EXECUTIVE TEAM USE ONLY: 
 
Date of Executive Team Acceptance: _________ Submitted by: __________________________________ 
                                                                                                                     Chief Officer 

 

Page 141 of 152



 

Page 4 
 

Page 142 of 152



 

Page 5 
 

Page 143 of 152



 

Page 6 
 

Page 144 of 152



 

Page 7 
 

 

Page 145 of 152



 Overview: February billed charges were over budget by $1.2M.

February YTD is $112M compared to budget of $95M.

Charges Budget

January 2020 16,271,574              14,095,678        

February 2020 13,886,140              13,186,280        

March 2020 12,141,181              14,095,678        

April 2020 6,887,085                13,640,980        

May 2020 10,687,793              14,095,678        

June 2020 13,443,103              13,640,980        

July 2020 14,939,822              11,862,737        

August 2020 13,989,077              11,533,455        

September 2020 14,652,230              10,715,581        

October 2020 14,539,677              12,487,777        

November 2020 12,978,658              11,166,411        

December 2020 15,139,508              11,863,789        

January 2021 13,060,873              13,778,625        

February 2021 12,879,445              11,639,016        

Gross Accounts Receivables in Athena total $38.2M, down from $39.1M at the end of January.

Gross Legacy AR is at $1,9M, Totally reserved for as Uncollectable.

Salaries and Wages for hospital operations were up from January but within budget. 

Salaries & Wages Cost Per Day

January 2020 2,169,008                69,968                

February 2020 2,144,412                73,945                

March 2020 2,306,958                74,418                

April 2020 1,999,126                66,638                

May 2020 2,082,141                67,166                

June 2020 2,130,598                71,020                

July 2020 2,244,335                72,398                

August 2020 2,263,144                73,005                

September 2020 2,142,762                71,425                

October 2020 2,227,959                71,870                

November 2020 2,161,607                72,054                

December 2020 2,596,191                83,748                

January 2021 2,096,158                67,618                

February 2021 2,104,702                75,168                

February 2021 Financial Results: Revenues trended higher than budget in February

Direct costs were higher than budget due to pharmacy charges trending 150k higher per month, 

Labcorp testing of 200-400k per month, and G&A costs were 340k lower than budget.

Page 146 of 152



FY2021

Unit of Measure July 2020 August 2020 September 2020 October 2020 November 2020 December 2020 January 2021 February 2021

Cash, CDs & LAIF Investments 56,272,847        55,214,586             52,965,190           53,539,618          50,491,090        47,413,188           44,556,758           42,840,110           

Days Cash on Hand 226                     225                          220                        218                       153 143 156 150

Gross Accounts Receivable 46,949,619        48,287,230             45,195,462           39,988,328          38,951,324        41,570,823           39,066,151           38,262,376           

Average Daily Revenue 481,930             466,595                  473,708                472,527               464,702             468,886                462,027                461,791                

Gross Days in AR 97.42                  103.49                    95.41                    84.63                    83.82 88.66 84.55 82.86

Key Statistics

Acute Census Days 263 275 232 203 210 310 246 198

Swing Bed Census Days 42 44 34 8 20 8 16 28

Observation Days 44 32 46 48 39 28 37 37

Total Inpatient Utilization 349 351 312 259 269 346 299 263

Avg. Daily Inpatient Census 11.3 11.3 10.4 8.3 9.0 11.2 9.6 9.4

Emergency Room Visits 691                     639                          581                        624                       516                     504                        524                        480                        

Emergency Room Visits Per Day 22                       21                            19                          20                         17                       16                          17                          15                          

Operating Room Inpatients 31                       26                            39                          23                         27                       18                          21                          12                          

Operating Room Outpatient Cases 81                       74                            74                          74                         79                       90                          38                          68                          

RHC Clinic Visits 2,670                  2,614                       2,535                    2,730                    2,490                  2,758                     2,954                     3,282                     

NIA Clinic Visits 1,792                  1,794                       1,918                    1,681                    1,555                  1,642                     1,290                     1,408                     

Outpatient Hospital Visits 4,431                  3,558                       4,139                    3,560                    3,531                  3,837                     4,140                     4,188                     

Hospital Operations

Inpatient Revenue 3,201,903          3,105,168               3,469,234             2,495,776            2,626,028          4,084,113             3,318,446             2,323,227             

Outpatient Revenue 10,836,050        10,143,216             10,036,379           10,848,725          9,124,901          10,195,061           8,853,180             9,762,269             

Clinic (RHC) Revenue 901,868             740,693                  1,146,616             1,195,178            1,227,729          896,334                889,247                793,949                

Total Revenue 14,939,822        13,989,076             14,652,230           14,539,679          12,978,658        15,175,508           13,060,873           12,879,445           

Revenue Per Day 481,930             451,261                  488,408                469,022               432,622             489,533                421,318                459,980.18           

% Change (Month over Month) -6.36% 8.23% -3.97% -7.76% 13.15% -13.93% 9.18%

Salaries 2,244,335          2,263,143               2,142,762             2,227,959            2,161,607          2,596,191             2,096,158             2,104,702             

PTO Expenses 221,460             234,078                  225,291                249,855               258,672             124,932                370,227                234,842                

Total Salaries Expense 2,465,795          2,497,221               2,368,053             2,477,814            2,420,279          2,721,123             2,466,385             2,339,544             

Expense Per Day 79,542               80,556                    78,935                  79,929                  80,676               87,778                   79,561                   83,555                   

% Change 1.27% -2.01% 1.26% 0.93% 8.80% -9.36% 5.02%

Operating Expenses 6,681,333          6,598,376               6,443,189             6,700,067            7,141,845          9,200,728             7,485,656             7,229,565             

Operating Expenses Per Day 215,527             212,851                  214,773                216,131               238,062             296,798                241,473                233,212                

Capital Expenses 118,728             243,872                  146,626                47,518                  24,398               47,743                   1,042,766             27,227                   

Capital Expenses Per Day 3,830                  7,867                       4,888                    1,533                    813                     1,540                     33,638                   972.39                   

Total Expenses 8,056,147          7,962,211               7,811,638             7,971,619            8,554,701          10,596,071           8,859,968             8,349,803             

Total Expenses Per Day 259,876             256,846                  260,388                257,149               285,157             341,809                285,805                298,207                

Gross Margin 2,200,258          1,770,841               1,569,390             1,411,167            667,943             (182,482)               699,801                225,290                

Debt Compliance

Current Ratio (ca/cl) > 1.50 1.51 1.49 1.47 1.47 1.53 1.52 1.42 1.36

Quick Ratio (Cash * Net AR/cl) > 1.33 1.41 1.38 1.36 1.37 1.41 1.39 1.29 1.23

Days Cash on Hand > 75 226                     225                          220                        218                       185 143 162 150

Page 147 of 152



July 2020 August 2020 September 2020 October 2020 November 2020 December 2020 January 2020 February 2021

Total Net Patient Revenue 8,881,591             8,369,217                       8,239,709                        8,111,234                7,809,788                9,018,246                8,185,457                7,454,855                

Cost of Services

Salaries & Wages 2,244,335             2,263,143                       2,142,762                        2,227,958                2,161,607                2,596,191                2,096,158                2,104,702                

Benefits 1,285,813             1,444,212                       1,418,815                        1,486,044                1,593,889                1,473,236                1,676,074                1,403,697                

Professional Fees 1,729,883             1,641,804                       1,519,996                        1,734,533                1,988,193                2,046,081                2,153,241                1,928,594                

Pharmacy 176,452                 304,490                          373,754                            268,114                   229,276                   403,646                   333,834                   343,360                   

Medical Supplies 373,322                 237,452                          307,119                            362,431                   571,269                   284,134                   198,902                   445,225                   

Hospice Operations -                          -                                   -                                     -                            -                            -                            -                            

Athena EHR System 85,401                   86,356                             129,219                            145,890                   103,674                   89,294                      70,400                      68,680                      

Other Direct Costs 592,164                 492,312                          420,847                            475,097                   493,937                   608,146                   457,047                   485,307                   

Bad Debt 193,962                 128,607                          161,285                            -                            -                            1,700,000                500,000                   450,000                   

Total Direct Costs 6,681,333             6,598,376                       6,473,796                        6,700,067                7,141,845                9,200,728                7,485,656                7,229,565                

Gross Margin 2,200,258             1,770,841                       1,765,913                        1,411,167                667,943                   (182,482)                  699,801                   225,290                   

Gross Margin % 24.77% 21.16% 21.43% 17.40% 8.55% -2.02% 8.55% 3.02%

General and Administrative Overhead

Salaries & Wages 341,944                 326,215                          323,043                            340,706                   348,981                   335,953                   331,284                   299,846                   

Benefits 280,576                 230,351                          242,620                            273,351                   315,018                   235,101                   253,272                   225,528                   

Professional Fees 182,344                 187,479                          170,202                            172,012                   230,120                   263,864                   324,397                   150,882                   

Depreciation and Amortization 348,949                 350,898                          350,981                            351,061                   351,070                   351,786                   332,743                   333,225                   

Other Administrative Costs 196,201                 195,246                          152,383                            134,422                   167,667                   208,639                   132,616                   110,757                   

Total General and Administrative Overhead 1,350,014             1,290,188                       1,239,230                        1,271,552                1,412,856                1,395,343                1,374,312                1,120,238                

Net Margin 850,244                 480,653                          526,683                            139,614                   (744,913)                  (1,577,825)               (674,511)                  (894,948)                  

Net Margin % 9.57% 5.74% 6.39% 1.72% -9.54% -17.50% -8.24% -12.00%

Financing Expense 121,150                 119,676                          114,676                            134,694                   146,215                   115,920                   111,327                   113,408                   

Financing Income 56,337                   56,337                             56,337                              56,337                      1,076,210                56,337                      56,337                      56,337                      

Investment Income 49,812                   29,010                             34,393                              52,775                      23,405                      31,044                      29,189                      20,452                      

Miscellaneous Income 91,226                   52,266                             51,822                              35,727                      284,821                   88,180                      28,264                      147,902                   

Net Surplus 926,469                 498,589                          554,560                            149,759                   493,308                   (1,518,184)               (672,048)                  (783,665)                  

Page 148 of 152



February 2021

  Assets

    Current Assets

      Cash and Liquid Capital 1,878,671                                                 

      Short Term Investments 39,049,288                                               

      PMA Partnership 574,941                                                     

      Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance 25,897,062                                               

      Other Receivables 1,945,023                                                 

      Inventory 2,988,388                                                 

      Prepaid Expenses 1,519,711                                                 

    Total Current Assets 73,853,084                                               

    Assets Limited as to Use     

      Internally Designated for Capital Acquisitions 1,193,799                                                 

      Short Term - Restricted 628,945                                                     

      Limited Use Assets       

        LAIF - DC Pension Board Restricted 1,001,080                                                 

        DB Pension 18,895,468                                               

        PEPRA - Deferred Outflows 8,320                                                         

        PEPRA Pension 79,568                                                       

      Total Limited Use Assets 19,984,436                                               

      Revenue Bonds Held by a Trustee 2,754,024                                                 

    Total Assets Limited as to Use 24,561,204                                               

    Long Term Assets     

      Long Term Investment 1,761,791                                                 

      Fixed Assets, Net of Depreciation 75,486,632                                               

    Total Long Term Assets 77,248,423                                               

  Total Assets 175,662,711                                             

  Liabilities   

    Current Liabilities     

      Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 1,537,774                                                 

      Accounts Payable 6,323,721                                                 

      Accrued Payroll and Related 10,488,372                                               

      Accrued Interest and Sales Tax 364,524                                                     

      Notes Payable 8,927,628                                                 

      Unearned Revenue 21,314,925                                               

      Due to 3rd Party Payors 2,341,874                                                 

      Due to Specific Purpose Funds (25,098)                                                      

      Other Deferred Credits - Pension 3,045,352                                                 

    Total Current Liabilities 54,319,072                                               

    Long Term Liabilities     

      Long Term Debt 37,634,947                                               

      Bond Premium 429,098                                                     

      Accreted Interest 14,244,849                                               

      Other Non-Current Liability - Pension 39,799,580                                               

    Total Long Term Liabilities 92,108,474                                               

    Suspense Liabilities (7,224,840)                                                

    Uncategorized Liabilities 435,628                                                     

  Total Liabilities 139,638,334                                             

  Fund Balance   

    Fund Balance 36,159,122                                               

    Temporarily Restricted 648,920                                                     

    Net Income (783,665)                                                   

  Total Fund Balance 36,024,377                                               

  Liabilities + Fund Balance 175,662,711                                             

Page 149 of 152



Budget Actual

Budget Expense as a 

% of Revenue

Actual  Expense as a 

% of Revenue

2/28/2021 2/28/2021 2/28/2021 2/28/2021

Total Net Patient Revenue 6,401,459                 7,454,855                 

Cost of Services

Salaries & Wages 2,157,534                 2,104,702                 33.70% 28.23%

Benefits 1,362,051                 1,403,697                 21.28% 18.83%

Professional Fees 1,496,661                 1,928,594                 23.38% 25.87%

Pharmacy 181,520                     343,360                     2.84% 4.61%

Medical Supplies 332,351                     445,225                     5.19% 5.97%

Hospice Operations 41,565                       -                              0.65% 0.00%

Athena EHR System 113,946                     68,680                       1.78% 0.92%

Other Direct Costs 182,442                     485,307                     2.85% 6.51%

Bad Debt -                              450,000                     0.00% 6.04%

Total Direct Costs 5,868,069                 7,229,565                 91.67% 96.98%

Gross Margin 533,390                     225,290                     

Gross Margin % 8.33% 3.02%

General and Administrative Overhead

Salaries & Wages 447,004                     299,846                     6.98% 4.02%

Benefits 345,579                     225,528                     5.40% 3.03%

Professional Fees 235,452                     150,882                     3.68% 2.02%

Depreciation and Amortization 368,950                     333,225                     5.76% 4.47%

Other Administrative Costs 63,278                       110,757                     0.99% 1.49%

Total General and Administrative Overhead 1,460,264                 1,120,238                 22.81% 15.03%

Net Margin (926,874)                   (894,948)                   

Net Margin % -14.48% -12.00%

Financing Expense 217,793                     113,408                     3.40% 1.52%

Financing Income 186,890                     56,337                       2.92% 0.76%

Investment Income 40,468                       20,452                       0.63% 0.27%

Miscellaneous Income 25,753                       147,902                     0.40% 1.98%

Net Surplus (891,556)                   (783,665)                   

Page 150 of 152



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Utilization OP Visits

Outpatient Visits 2019 Outpatient Visits 2020 Outpatient Visits 2021 Budgeted 2021

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Utilization IP Days

Inpatient Census Days 2019 Inpatient Census Days 2020 Inpatient Census Days 2021 Budgeted 2021

Page 151 of 152



Management Discussion and Analysis

 Revenue continues to be robust given strong inpatient days and outpatient visits 

- Inpatient days in Feb were 263 compared to budgeted of 170

 - Outpatient visits in Feb were 9358 compared to 8519 budgeted for the month

 - Salaries are in line with budget

 - Professional fees is higher due to COVID testing from Labcorp

 - Gross margins were consistent with historical performance and lower due to lessor number of days in february and corresponding lower revenue

 - Strain on AR continues with cleaning up of old AR and providing more bad and doubtful reserves

 - Cash is trending lower due pending collections from medicare 

 - AR days trending lower with increased collection efforts and new Rev Cycle Director in place

Page 152 of 152


	Table of Contents
	Agenda, April 21 2021 Regular Meeting
	Agenda, April 21 2021 Regular Meeting

	Bronco Clinic Update
	Bronco Clinic Update (1 of 3)
	Bronco Clinic Update (2 of 3)
	Bronco Clinic update, 3 of 3

	Vendor Credentialing Policy and Procedure
	Vendor Credentialing Policy and Procedure approval

	NIHD Board Ad Hoc Committee List
	Board of Directors Active Ad Hoc Committee list

	Chief of Staff Report
	Medical Executive Committee Report for April 2021
	Medical Executive Committee Policy and Procedure approvals, April

	Consent Agenda
	March 10 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	March 14 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	March 17 2021 Regular Meeting minutes
	Policy and Procedure annual approvals, Lab
	Language Services Policy and Procedure approvals
	Cerner Implementation update, April 2021
	Financial and Statistical reports as of February 2021


